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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Good Morning. My

          3  name is Jessica Lappin.  I want to welcome all of

          4  you to my first Subcommittee meeting of 2006 of the

          5  Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime Uses

          6  Subcommittee. I have been joined today by members of

          7  the Committee, John Liu, Council Member Annabel

          8  Palma, Council Member Barron, Council Member Arroyo

          9  and Council Member Mendez.

         10                 There is one item on the agenda for

         11  consideration today.  It's the designation of the

         12  Seaman Cottage, which is located at 441 Clarke

         13  Avenue in Community District 3, which is in Staten

         14  Island, in Council Member Oddo's district.

         15                 I will now open the hearing on Land

         16  Use Item Number 72.  We will first take testimony

         17  from Diane Jackier of the Landmark's Commission.

         18                 Is there a Sergeant who can -- thank

         19  you.

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  Good morning, Chair

         21  Lappin, and honorable Council members.  My name is

         22  Diane Jackier, Director of Community and Government

         23  Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         24  I am here today to testify on the Commission's

         25  designation of the Seaman Cottage in Staten Island.

                                                            4

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 Seaman Cottage constructed Circa

          3  1836-37 by developer Henry Seaman, is a

          4  well-preserved example of a modest Greek Revival

          5  cottage and a significant reminder of the early

          6  history of Richmondtown, the historic governmental

          7  center of Staten Island.

          8                 Henry Seaman was an instrumental

          9  figure in the development of Richmondtown in the

         10  1830s, and this is the best preserved and most

         11  intact of the five houses that Seaman built on

         12  Center Street that came to be known as the "Seaman

         13  Cottages."

         14                 The term "cottage" was used in the

         15  1830s to describe a newly fashionable building type,

         16  a small scale house with up-to-date amenities and

         17  modern detailing for middle class occupants.

         18                 This two-and-one half story side hall

         19  plan, gable-roofed frame house retains its historic

         20  form and most of its historic detailing.  Its design

         21  exhibits the simple forms and planar surfaces

         22  characteristic of the Greek Revival style, and

         23  includes such notable features as a one-story

         24  portico, flush clapboarding, an eared and pedimented

         25  entry surround, simple molded window surrounds and a

                                                            5

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  low dormerless gabled roof.

          3                 Although, many small simple detached

          4  wood frame and clapboard Greek Revival style houses

          5  were erected in the villages of Staten Island in the

          6  1830s and 1840s, relatively few have survived making

          7  the Seaman Cottage an unusual survivor.

          8                 When the Commission held its first

          9  public hearing on a proposed designation of this

         10  building on October 26, 2004, the building was in

         11  its original location at 218 Centre Street.  Two

         12  people testified in favor, including Councilman

         13  James Oddo, and a representative of the Historic

         14  District's Council.  The Commission also received

         15  letters in support from the Preservation League of

         16  New York and Staten Island architect David

         17  Carnivale.

         18                 A representative of the owner, who

         19  had just purchased the property, spoke in opposition

         20  to designation because the owner planned to demolish

         21  the building and construct a new house on the site.

         22                 The Commission also received a

         23  petition signed by eighteen neighbors opposing

         24  designation.

         25                 As a result of collaborations between
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          2  the original owner, the Landmarks Commission and the

          3  new owner, Historic Richmondtown, Seaman Cottage was

          4  moved from its original location at 218 Centre

          5  Street to the next block at 441 Clarke Avenue in

          6  July of 2005.

          7                 I actually have a picture here

          8  showing the house as it was pulled along by a little

          9  truck.  In very few instances, is a moving a house a

         10  preferred solution for the preservation of a

         11  significant building.  However, in this case because

         12  the house was being kept in its local context and

         13  because the new owner, Historic Richmondtown, agreed

         14  to incorporate this house into its educational

         15  programming, the Commission decided this was the

         16  best way to ensure that the house would be

         17  preserved.

         18                 On December 13, 2005, the Landmarks

         19  Commission held a second public hearing on the

         20  proposed designation of the Seaman Cottage at its

         21  new location at 441 Clarke Avenue.  Three people

         22  testified in favor, including John Guild, the

         23  Executive Director of Historic Richmondtown, who

         24  spoke about the organization's plans for the future

         25  restoration of the building.
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          2                 The Commission voted to designate the

          3  house a New York City landmark on that same day.

          4                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          5  the designation of Seaman Cottage, and I am happy to

          6  answer any questions.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Yes, thank you.

          8  Does any of my colleagues have questions?  Council

          9  Member Barron.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  You know this

         11  is the ritual we go through when landmarking.  I

         12  find it hard to believe that this establishment of

         13  Richmondtown, and Mr. Seaman, 1683, and there is

         14  nothing to say about slavery, that he had absolutely

         15  nothing to do with it.  There is no part of this

         16  development, and even though slavery was prevalent

         17  from 1627 to 1840, but yet it is not in the record

         18  anywhere, Revolutionary War you got here -- let me

         19  see what else -- you know you covered -- 1729 the

         20  British Troops came in and the Revolutionary War,

         21  Arthur Kill Road, nothing about slavery?

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  If we had done anything

         23  specifically relating to the building we have

         24  included it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Oh come on.
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          2  You say that every time you come, so who's looking?

          3                 MS. JACKIER:   Our research staff.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  I find this

          5  hard to believe. We go through this every time.  You

          6  have never come here and connected anything

          7  historical, and it's just telling the truth. It's

          8  not like it's not going to get landmarked because

          9  its connected to slavery, but it's telling the truth

         10  for the public record. I want a couple of years, and

         11  you have yet to come here and connect anything, and

         12  I just find it hard to believe that it was so

         13  prevalent.

         14                 At where we sit, 20,000 bones of my

         15  ancestors are right in this whole area, and every

         16  time you come here, you have yet to come up with

         17  anybody that found any research connecting any

         18  landmarking stuff to the colonial slave period.

         19  That's ridiculous. And I find that hard to believe.

         20                 Are you actually -- people are

         21  actually researching, looking for that?

         22                 MS. JACKIER:  In the normal course of

         23  our research when we do a designation like this, we

         24  would include any information that we had found that

         25  would relate to slavery.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Where do you

          3  look?  Where do they look?

          4                 MS. JACKIER:  Our Research Department

          5  goes to all different resources throughout the City,

          6  the Municipal Archives, the Staten Island Historical

          7  Society, for this particular building, since it's in

          8  Staten Island.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Did you all

         10  see the slavery exhibit at the New York City

         11  Historical Society and how they did an extensive

         12  research on slavery in New York City?

         13                 MS. JACKIER: Mm-hmm.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Your

         15  department was there for that?

         16                 MS. JACKIER:  Was my Department

         17  directly?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Was the

         19  Research Department, did they have that information?

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  Presumably.  I don't

         21  know what information they used.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Well, the

         23  next time you come, I would appreciate it if you

         24  could bring someone from the Research Department,

         25  because I find it absurd that every time you come
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          2  here, no matter what the dates are of any, any

          3  facility, any landmark in New York City, it never

          4  has a connection to slavery during that whole

          5  period.  It never does. You have yet to come here

          6  with anything during that period from 1625 to 1840,

          7  and even thereafter, that connects any landmark to

          8  slavery.  It's ridiculous.  And we've been going on

          9  this for a year.  I have been very patient. I have

         10  been trying to let the meetings get by without

         11  having to raise this every time.

         12                 But Madam Chair, I would ask that we

         13  send a letter to the Landmarks Commission to insist

         14  that if they are going to come and landmark items

         15  during that period, that it should be thoroughly

         16  researched, and if there is a connection with any of

         17  these individuals or institutions to slavery, that

         18  it be documented for the records of New York City.

         19  That it be documented.  Because we have been going

         20  through this, and I raised it every time with the

         21  prior Chair and with the Landmarks Commission, that

         22  this should be on the public record. It doesn't

         23  determine whether this would be landmarked or not

         24  but it should at least be on the public record.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Duly noted.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We will discuss

          5  that after the meeting.  We have been joined by

          6  Council Member Comrie and Council Member Oddo. I

          7  would like to, since this is in Council Member

          8  Oddo's district, if you have a question?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Madam Chair,

         10  thank you.  No, I just want to thank the Landmarks

         11  Preservation Commission for their action on saving a

         12  small part of Staten Island's history.  And I want

         13  to thank David Carnivale, who is a local architect,

         14  who was really the passion, or part of the passion

         15  behind this movement, and I want to congratulate you

         16  on the record, and close by saying I support

         17  Charles's request.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Duly noted.

         19                 Council Member Palma.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Thank you,

         21  Madam Chair.

         22                 The petition that was signed by the

         23  eighteen neighbors that opposed it, are they still

         24  opposed, or what is their position, and the reason

         25  for opposing?
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          2                 MS. JACKIER:  From my understanding

          3  their reason for opposition, the house was vacant at

          4  the time that the Commission preceded with the

          5  designation process and they didn't want a vacant

          6  landmarked building to be in their neighborhood

          7  because they thought that would affect their

          8  property values.  But the house has since been moved

          9  to its new location which is a block away and it is

         10  now part of Historic Richmondtown.  So the owner who

         11  had bought the house to demolish it, since the house

         12  that was there had been moved, there was a vacant

         13  parcel for him to build on and he's been able to do

         14  that.  So presumably we didn't hear from the rest of

         15  the neighbors, but presumably they are okay because

         16  there is this new house being built in their

         17  neighborhood.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  And someone

         19  was opposed to --

         20                 MS. JACKIER:  No one is opposed.  No

         21  one is opposed to this.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Council Member

         24  Liu.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Thank you, Madam
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          2  Chairperson. I just wanted to express my delight in

          3  being added to this Subcommittee, and to

          4  congratulate you for assuming the Chairpersonship.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you. Any

          6  other questions?

          7                 Council Member Oddo.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I would just

          9  like to put on the record in response, not in

         10  response, but just to assure all my colleagues that

         11  the notion that landmarking this particular piece of

         12  property or the fact that it was going to be vacant,

         13  just the notion that anything like that would affect

         14  the value of homes adjacent to it or affect prices,

         15  nothing is affecting prices on Staten Island.  They

         16  continue to go into one direction and that's up to

         17  the chagrin of many and to the delight, I guess, of

         18  some, so, but thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you.

         20                 Council Member Reyna.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I'm sorry,

         22  Madam Chair.  I just wanted to ask a question. I

         23  know I don't belong to this Committee, but I do want

         24  to take advantage of the opportunity of having

         25  someone from the Landmarks Commission who can,
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          2  perhaps on the legislative side, shed some light to

          3  a specific area in my district. I know that Council

          4  Member Barron has just expressed his concern with

          5  legitimate areas where there should be a priority to

          6  getting areas landmarked, specifically there is this

          7  notion that you know there is a lack of staff on the

          8  Landmarks Commission.  Therefore, we can't get

          9  through all the applications.  But then there's all

         10  this work done on behalf of outside sources that

         11  makes the Commission easier to review some of these

         12  applications, and even then things are not dealt

         13  with in an expedited fashion.  So I am trying to

         14  figure out what is the trouble or how can we

         15  intercede to making certain that, you know, I

         16  specifically put in a Landmarks application for an

         17  old Commodore Theater in our district, and I have

         18  yet to hear from the Commission on this, or any

         19  staff member to at least give a courtesy call to my

         20  office and say this is the status of this. We know

         21  that there is an unknown architect.  Well, to my

         22  knowledge every architect is unknown until someone

         23  thinks their worthy, as well as their work, is

         24  notable to be then well regarded in the industry in

         25  which they work, and so I can't imagine that just
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          2  because there is an unknown architect, it falls on

          3  the way side of the work of the Commission.

          4                 But it's concerning me because more

          5  and more I have constituents coming to me, this is

          6  landmark worthy and this is landmark worthy, but if

          7  we're going to have a list of sites and nothing is

          8  going to get done with them, I can't continue to

          9  exhaust my resources.  I only have a staff of six,

         10  and we are doing plenty in our district in all sorts

         11  of issues.  So at the end of the day, I can't

         12  understand, and I can't except the answer that there

         13  is a lack of staff.  There has to be a better way

         14  and we have so much technology out there, perhaps I

         15  can suggest that the Commission start investing in

         16  technology.

         17                 Is there a comment?

         18                 MS. JACKIER:  I don't really know

         19  what your question is, but I am certainly happy to

         20  tell our Chairman about your concerns.  I know the

         21  Commodore Theater is something the Commission

         22  actually is very interested in, having nothing to do

         23  with the fact that the architect is known or

         24  unknown, and I do apologize that you never received

         25  any response from the Commission. I will certainly
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          2  go back right after this and speak to our Director

          3  of Research and find out more information about this

          4  specific request for evaluation.

          5                 As for the Commission's staffing and

          6  technology, I certainly understand your concerns,

          7  our Chairman will be here in front of the Land Use

          8  Committee next week to talk about that during the

          9  budget hearings, and I am sure he would be happy to

         10  discuss that with you, as well as if you would like

         11  to set up a meeting or anything I will let him know.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  I appreciate

         13  that.  This Landmarks application for that theater,

         14  the Commodore Theater, went in four years ago.  So

         15  we are talking about an extensive amount of time

         16  already.

         17                 As far as what Council Member Oddo

         18  had mentioned, as far as the cost relative to

         19  Landmarks, according to the Commission, you know

         20  that you have a Real Estate Commissioner that sits

         21  on the board, a realtor, and yet they don't bring

         22  their expertise in the real estate market onto the

         23  Commission.  So I am not quite sure if whether or

         24  not the market plays a role because no one is truly

         25  defining what the realtor's role is on the
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          2  Commission, and I don't know if you would be able to

          3  answer that question.

          4                      MS. JACKIER:  I am sorry, I

          5  don't understand. I was actually glad that

          6  Councilman Oddo pointed out what he did say about

          7  the house values. I didn't mean to set to insinuate

          8  that the Landmarks Commission agreed with the

          9  neighbors who were opposing, who were saying that a

         10  Landmark in their neighborhood would bring down the

         11  values of their homes.   The Landmarks Commission

         12  fully disagrees with that point of view, but that is

         13  what the neighbors were saying.  So, I just wanted

         14  to clarify that point.  But I don't know if that is

         15  what your question is.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  But for you to

         17  say that the Landmarks made a reference to, on the

         18  record, state that landmarks would never decrease

         19  value, and yet I have a commissioner who is being

         20  appointed on the Commission who has the hat of a

         21  realtor telling me that she is not being appointed

         22  to regard the market, but rather as her realtor,

         23  being a realtor she's being appointed. So I am not

         24  certain is the answer yes, the market plays a role

         25  within the Landmarks Commission and how they
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          2  evaluate one decision or another, or is the answer

          3  no?

          4                 MS. JACKIER:  I really was not

          5  prepared to answer that question here right now, so

          6  I.

          7                 Think --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  She is just here

          9  today to testify about the Seaman Cottage

         10  application.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  And I

         12  understand that, but she is the Legislative Affairs

         13  individual, and I have requested this information

         14  when we were reappointing the Realtor Commissioner

         15  to the Landmarks Commission.  There is still that

         16  uncertainty.  And as the Rules Chair, I'd like to

         17  continue understanding what the role of the realtor

         18  as a commissioner on the Commission is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Maybe you could

         20  talk to Commissioner Tierney --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA:  Sure, thank

         22  you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  -- About

         24  clarifying for Council Member Reyna the role of --

         25  and I would encourage, you know, people on the
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          2  Committee and people who are interested to come and

          3  hear and ask questions and testify about staffing

          4  levels.  I know, Council Member Comrie, at the

          5  Reappointment Hearing, you had some interesting

          6  ideas about to improve the process in terms of

          7  technology and posting pictures, and submitting

          8  electronic photos and other things, so I think that

          9  would be a great opportunity to discuss some of

         10  those ideas and to press a little bit on staffing

         11  issues and trying to maybe increase the budget, if

         12  necessary.

         13                 Council Member Mendez.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  First,

         15  congratulations, Madam Chair, on chairing your first

         16  hearing of 2006 for this Committee.

         17                 I just want to take the opportunity

         18  to concur with my colleague, Charles Barron, to say

         19  while a complete history may not be indicative of

         20  whether we choose to landmark, I think a complete

         21  history is very important for everyone.  Years from

         22  now, and decades from now, someone can be doing more

         23  research and will come upon a little part of

         24  something that can lead to significant other

         25  findings in the surrounding area.  So, I would
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          2  appreciate, as I think other colleagues in this

          3  Committee, a more complete history in future

          4  hearings. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  That is an

          6  important point.

          7                 Any other questions?  Thank you.

          8                 The next witness is Linda Eskenas.

          9  Eskenas, my apologies.  The Preservation League of

         10  Staten Island.

         11                 LINDA ESKENAS:  Thank you.

         12  Congratulations to the Chairman. We are certainly

         13  looking forward --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Chairwoman.

         15                 LINDA ESKENAS:   I am sorry.  That's

         16  for sure. About the Seaman Cottage.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Can you just

         18  state your name for the record, please.

         19                 LINDA ESKENAS:  Yes, Linda Eskenas.

         20  I am representing the Preservation League of Staten

         21  Island, and also West Brighton Restoration Society.

         22  The Seaman Cottage is very important and is a

         23  transitional period between 1799, the Federal Period

         24  and Greek Revival, which really came to its own in

         25  the 1840s.  It's from when there were few farms and
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          2  takes you through where there was lots of

          3  immigration to small towns and so forth.  It is

          4  very, very important.  And I guess you saw that

          5  wonderful picture of the house being moved. It was

          6  fortunate that it could be moved.  And also, I would

          7  like to thank David Carnivale, who grew up with

          8  Lauren McMillan, who created Richmondtown, and

          9  learned how to preserve preservation and all the

         10  skills of really what a building is.

         11                 In addition to that, about slavery

         12  and the history of Black America.  Where I am in

         13  West Brighton, it's the earliest integrated area,

         14  one of the earliest integrated areas in the

         15  northeast.  And Henry Rires owned land across the

         16  street from where my house is, which has recently

         17  been landmarked.  His family is buried there and

         18  Evelyn King, who you may know, is a saintly woman

         19  who is a great historian, her family was buried

         20  there. And in 1827, one block away, the Emancipation

         21  was read from a famous hotel which stood there, on

         22  the second floor, and people came from everywhere.

         23  The walked.  They rode there.  They came on rafts.

         24  They came on boats, and anyway they can get there,

         25  and they stayed there for three weeks in
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          2  celebration.

          3                 We are trying to save this area. It's

          4  been very hard.  It's an early village in 2100 B.C.,

          5  a projectile was found that's pre-arrowhead, because

          6  the Lennape Indians were there.  It's the sacred

          7  sites which we also -- other cemeteries are there as

          8  well.  So anyway, this is pretty important to us and

          9  it is part of our history.

         10                 The Seaman Cottages, so important and

         11  I am sure it will be that you will have it

         12  landmarked, but it is more important, and I regret

         13  to tell you, that within ten miles of Richmondtown

         14  today, there is not one house left standing from the

         15  early -- from the 1700s.  In fact, we have just lost

         16  a house, the Seaver Homestead, which is on a map in

         17  1797, also found by David Carnivale.

         18                 In addition, to this house was 1860,

         19  this house was unaltered.  Even the Building

         20  Department pulled it before its destruction  --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I am sorry I am

         22  going to have to ask you to --

         23                 LINDA ESKENAS:  -- And last Friday,

         24  you should know, that it was demolished within an

         25  hour and a half of the owner finding out that it
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          2  could be -- we made Landmarks aware of it and I

          3  think every elected official wrote on its behalf.

          4  And this is 1797, the Severes rode and fought with

          5  George Washington.  How could this happen?  We must

          6  make sure that it never, ever happens again. But now

          7  there is hardly a building now on Staten Island --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  I am sorry,but

          9  we are going to have to ask you to wrap up.  We are

         10  here today to discuss the Seaman Cottage --

         11                 LINDA ESKENAS:  I know --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  We appreciate

         13  your testimony.

         14                 LINDA ESKENAS:  But it is important

         15  in that --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  We understand,

         17  we understand that.

         18                 LINDA ESKENAS:  How important the

         19  Seaman Cottage is, this too could have been moved to

         20  Richmondtown, but whether it could have or not,

         21  these are -- this is our American Heritage, our

         22  combined American Heritage, and we must protect it.

         23  Even if houses -- this was unaltered, but even if

         24  houses have aluminum siding on them or something, if

         25  they are that old, they belong to all of us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 LINDA ESKENAS:  Thank you so much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  The next witness

          6  is Simeon Bankoff, Historic Districts Council.

          7                 SIMEON BANKOFF:  Good afternoon,

          8  Council members.  I am Simeon Bankoff, Executive

          9  Director of the Historic Districts Council. I would

         10  like to welcome Chair Lappin to her first

         11  Subcommittee meeting, and all the new members.

         12  Welcome.

         13                 I am here in support of the Seaman's

         14  Cottage designation.  I am actually handing out, not

         15  my testimony, but the testimony that was forwarded

         16  to me from John Guild, who is the Executive Director

         17  of the Staten Island Historic Society, who could not

         18  be here today, but has wrote Chair Lappin in support

         19  of this.

         20                 This is one of these -- as Diane

         21  mentioned, moving a house is rarely the preferred

         22  means of preserving it, particularly in this City,

         23  but it's a wonderful thing when it does happen and

         24  this is really one of these cases where all of the

         25  stars ended up aligning in favor that the house
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          2  could actually be moved only a block away, so it's

          3  still essentially within its historic context and

          4  adds immeasurably to the historic complex of both

          5  Richmondtown and the heritage of Staten Island.

          6                 And finally, just to sort of touch on

          7  what Council Member Reyna said about the staffing

          8  situation at the Landmarks Commission. I have sat

          9  before this Committee numerous times and said that

         10  they need more staff.  They do need more staff.  I

         11  believe that they have basically done all they can

         12  do with the technology available at this point.  You

         13  can actually search the records online.  They just

         14  need more staff.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Thank you very

         16  much.  Any questions from any of my colleagues?

         17  Okay, any other speakers today.  Seeing none, we'll

         18  close the public hearing, and I would like to

         19  recommend a favorable vote on this item.  And

         20  Counsel please call the roll.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Chair Lappin.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Aye.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         24  Arroyo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          3  Barron.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  May I be

          5  excused to explain my vote?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: First, I want

          8  to support Council Member Oddo in this landmarking

          9  request, and also congratulations on your new

         10  appointment, and you are doing a fine job.

         11                 But I am going to continue to vote in

         12  favor and support my colleagues, but this is really

         13  getting at a really ridiculous stage.  What about

         14  the Native Americans?  You know, I mean what about

         15  the other peoples that were around at that time.  We

         16  were all not living, you know, happily together and

         17  harmonious and everything was fine.  So we really

         18  need to record this history, and I am going to keep

         19  pushing it until it happens because it needs to

         20  simply be recorded. Aye.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         22  Comrie.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  Permission to

         24  explain my vote?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE:  I just want

          3  to congratulate the Chair on her first hearing and

          4  welcome her to the wonderful Landmarks Committee.

          5  You know, I intend to vote aye on this issue but I

          6  just want to support my colleague, Council Member

          7  Barron and his issue.  We should send a letter to

          8  the Commission specifically talking about his issues

          9  and how the Commission is investigating it.  I know

         10  the Commission will be here next week for budget

         11  hearings, and I hope that they are prepared to fully

         12  answer those questions.

         13                 And also on the questions of Council

         14  Member Reyna, as to what is their reality or the

         15  understanding of why a realtor is on the Board and

         16  how that factors into the Commission in how they do

         17  their deliberations. But for us to be asking this

         18  question, or for Council Member Barron to be asking

         19  this question for years without not getting a real

         20  technical and detailed answer, is, frankly, an

         21  insult and it needs to be stopped. And I think by

         22  next Thursday is plenty of time for the Commission

         23  to come up with full and thorough answers to the

         24  question.  I vote aye.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member
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          2  Liu.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Yes.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

          5  Mendez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ:  Aye.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

          8  Palma.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA:  Aye.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         11  Oddo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: May I be

         13  temporarily excused to explain my vote?  I don't

         14  want to get on a diatribe here, but I was listening

         15  to Council Member Barron's comments and now Council

         16  Member Comrie's, and I just thought back to a recent

         17  interview that was held with the great actor Morgan

         18  Freeman, who actually objects to the notion of Black

         19  History Month because he feels that his history and

         20  the history of black folks is American History and

         21  he doesn't like it relegated to one month, which I

         22  think is an interesting perspective.  And if you

         23  take those comments in mind, along with your

         24  comments, I agree with you, this is part of our

         25  collective history, and it should be analyzed.  I
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          2  defer to you in telling us if it's more difficult

          3  than doing other research, I can imagine it might be

          4  somewhat, but not to the point that it can't be

          5  done.  And I want to thank Ms. Eskenas for her

          6  testimony because she just gave a little bit of

          7  insight. Staten Island, despite the stereotypes of

          8  some folks who don't know it, is not lily white

          9  today and is wasn't lily white yesterday, and it's a

         10  rich history, and we are trying to save a little bit

         11  of it today, and I thank my colleagues and all those

         12  who testified in favor of it.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  The votes

         14  stands at eight in the affirmative, none in the

         15  negative and no abstentions, and refer to the full

         16  Land Use Committee.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN:  Meeting

         18  adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 12:16 p.m.)
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